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ORDER 
 
By the Commission: 
 
 Under Section 3 of the Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act ("Act") [220 ILCS 20/3], 
the Illinois Commerce Commission ("Commission") is required to: 
 

adopt rules establishing minimum safety standards for the transportation 
of gas and for pipeline facilities. Such rules shall be at least as inclusive, 
as stringent, and compatible with, the minimum safety standards adopted 
by the Secretary of Transportation under the Federal Act. 

 
The Commission has incorporated by reference applicable federal rules at 83 Ill. Adm. 
Code 590, "Minimum Safety Standards for Transportation of Gas and for Gas Pipeline 
Facilities" ("Part 590"). Section 590.10(a) incorporates "49 CFR 191.23, 192, 193, and 
199 as of January 1, 2009, as its minimum safety standards for the transportation of 
gas and for gas pipeline facilities." 
 
 In a Staff Report dated November 10, 2010, the Staff of the Commission's 
Pipeline Safety Program ("Staff") detailed the alleged violations of The Peoples Gas 
Light and Coke Company (“Peoples” or “the Company”) for failure to comply with 
specified minimum federal safety standards for transportation of natural gas incorpo-
rated by Part 590. Peoples is a public utility engaged in the conveyance of gas by pipe 
line (See 220 ILCS 5/3-105) and, as such, is subject to the Act in that it is a person who 
engages in the transportation of gas or who owns or operates pipeline facilities. Section 
6(a)(1) of the Act requires that every such person shall "at all times after the date any 
applicable safety standard established under this Act takes effect comply with the 
requirements of such standard." [220 ILCS 20/6(a)(1)] 
 
 As recounted in the Staff Report, the Staff conducted an investigation of an 
incident regarding Peoples that occurred on March 3, 2010. As part of the investigation, 



data was collected and reviewed, interviews of Peoples’ management and distribution 
representatives were conducted, and incident site inspections were performed. Staff’s 
investigation and review identified two alleged violations of the Sections of the Code of 
Federal Regulations incorporated by Part 590. 
 

Incident Investigation and Review 
 
 As related in the Staff Report, Staff conducted an investigation of the March 3, 
2010 incident to determine compliance with the requirements of the federal rules 
incorporated by reference and other relevant Commission rules adopted under authority 
of the Act. The Staff found the following: 

 
49 CFR §192.13(c) requires each operator to maintain, modify as appropriate, 
and follow the plans, procedures, programs required under this part. Peoples’ 
Distribution Manual Main Work Order 7.100 (“Work Order 7.100”) required block-
ing/bracing of all end caps prior to pressure testing. Staff’s investigation 
determined that, with respect to pressure testing conducted on March 3, 2010, 
Peoples failed to comply with 49 CFR Section 192.13(c) in that it did not follow 
Work Order 7.100 to block and brace the end cap on the pipe involved in the 
pressure testing as required by its written procedures. 
 

 On September 1, 2010, as referenced in the Staff Report, the Manager of the 
Pipeline Safety Program sent a letter to Peoples identifying a Notice of Probable 
Violation (“NOPV”) for failure to comply with 49 CFR Section 192.13(c). Peoples’ 
correspondence, dated October 1, 2010, responded to the NOPV and, in addition, 
provided its interpretation of Work Order 7.100. 
 
 Upon review of Peoples’ interpretation in its response letter, Staff identified the 
following additional code-related issue in connection with this incident: 
 

49 CFR §192.515(a) requires that, in conducting tests under this subpart, an op-
erator must ensure that every reasonable precaution is taken to protect its 
employees and the general public during the test. Peoples failed to comply with 
49 CFR Section 192.515(c) in that it should have taken reasonable precautions 
to protect the employees involved and the general public with respect to the 
March 3, 2010 incident by blocking and bracing the exposed pipe segment. 

 
 The Staff Report presents a sufficient basis to initiate a proceeding to determine 
whether the Company has violated the federal rules incorporated by reference in 83 Ill. 
Adm. Code 590. Section 7(a) of the Act states: 
 

Any person violating paragraph (a) of Section 6 of this Act or any rule or 
order issued under this Act is subject to a civil penalty not to exceed the 
maximum penalties established by Section 60122(a)(1) of Title 49 of the 
United States Code for each day the violation persists. 

 



The maximum penalty established by 49 USC 60122(a)(1) is $100,000 for each 
violation. A separate violation occurs for each day the violation continues. The maxi-
mum civil penalty under this Section for a related series of violations is $1,000,000. 
 
 The Commission, being fully advised in the premises, is of the opinion and finds 
that: 
 

(1) the Commission has jurisdiction over the subject matter herein and the 
parties hereto; 

 
(2) The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company is a public utility engaged in 

the conveyance of gas by pipe line and, as such, is subject to the Illinois 
Gas Pipeline Safety Act in that it is a person who engages in the transpor-
tation of gas or who owns or operates pipeline facilities; 

 
(3) The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company should be made a respondent 

to this proceeding; 
 
(4) the Commission has incorporated as its rules the federal rules relating to 

gas pipeline safety through its adoption of 83 Ill. Adm. Code 590; 
 
(5) the Staff Report from the Pipeline Safety Program provides a basis for the 

initiation of a proceeding to determine whether The Peoples Gas Light 
and Coke Company has failed to comply with the requirements of the 
Code of Federal Regulations that the Commission has incorporated by 
reference by its adoption of 83 Ill. Adm. Code 590; 

 
(6) a proceeding should be initiated pursuant to Section 7 of the Illinois Gas 

Pipeline Safety Act [220 ILCS 20/7] to determine whether the Company 
has failed to comply with 49 CFR Sections 192.13(c) and 192.515(a); 

 
(7) the Staff Report dated November 10, 2010 should be made a part of the 

record of this proceeding. 
 

 IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Illinois Commerce Commission that a 
proceeding be initiated to determine whether The Peoples Gas Light and Coke 
Company has failed to comply with the following requirements of the Code of Federal 
Regulations adopted by the Illinois Commerce Commission as required by Section 3 of 
the Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act and rules of the Commission adopted under the Act, 
and to determine whether civil penalties should be imposed pursuant to Section 7 of the 
Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act: 
 

(1) 49 CFR §192.13(c) requires each operator to maintain, modify as appro-
priate, and follow the plans, procedures, programs required under this 
part. 

 



(2) 49 CFR §192.515(a) requires that, in conducting tests under this subpart, 
an operator must ensure that every reasonable precaution is taken to pro-
tect its employees and the general public during the test. 

 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company is 
made a respondent to this proceeding. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Staff Report dated November 10, 2010 is 
made a part of the record of this proceeding. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent appear at the offices of the 
Commission at the time and date specified by the Administrative Law Judge assigned 
to this proceeding. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that failure of the respondent to appear as ordered 
may result in findings that The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company has failed to 
comply with the enumerated requirements of the Code of Federal Regulations as 
incorporated by reference by the Illinois Commerce Commission and may result in the 
imposition of civil penalties pursuant to Section 7 of the Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Order is not final; it is not subject to the 
Administrative Review Law. 
 
 By Order of the Commission this 15th day of December 2010. 
 
 
 
 

(SIGNED) MANUEL FLORES 
 

Acting Chairman 
 


